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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D. C. 20549

Form 10-Q

(Mark One)

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 28, 2010

OR

¨ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from              to             

Commission file number 000-25711

EXTREME NETWORKS, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
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DELAWARE 77-0430270
[State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization]

[I.R.S Employer

Identification No.]

3585 Monroe Street,

Santa Clara, California 95051
[Address of principal executive office] [Zip Code]

Registrant�s telephone number, including area code: (408) 579-2800

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 229.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).    Yes  ¨    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer� and �smaller reporting company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer ¨ Accelerated filer x

Non-accelerated filer ¨  (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company ¨
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).    Yes  ¨    No  x

The number of shares of the Registrant�s Common Stock, $.001 par value, outstanding at April 25, 2010 was 89,997,231.
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EXTREME NETWORKS, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

March 28,
2010

June 28,
2009

(unaudited) (1)
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 40,362 $ 46,195
Short-term investments 63,197 8,976
Accounts receivable, net 36,598 37,616
Inventories, net 23,638 12,380
Deferred income taxes 347 244
Prepaid expenses and other current assets, net 3,072 4,368

Total current assets 167,214 109,779
Property and equipment, net 43,457 44,229
Marketable securities 24,358 72,231
Other assets, net 15,333 13,736

Total assets $ 250,362 $ 239,975

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 18,853 $ 12,771
Accrued compensation and benefits 11,941 12,320
Restructuring liabilities 3,242 3,559
Accrued warranty 3,326 3,170
Deferred revenue, net 30,697 30,058
Deferred revenue, net of cost of sales to distributors 14,465 9,821
Other accrued liabilities 14,228 14,666

Total current liabilities 96,752 86,365

Restructuring liabilities, less current portion 1,035 3,519
Deferred revenue, less current portion 6,922 7,425
Deferred income taxes 713 564
Other long-term liabilities 435 592

Commitments and contingencies (Note 3) �  

Stockholders� equity:
Convertible preferred stock, $.001 par value, issuable in series, 2,000,000 shares authorized; none issued �  �  
Common stock, $.001 par value, 750,000,000 shares authorized; 129,328,008 issued at March 28, 2010
(128,425,140 June 28, 2009) and capital in excess of par value 129 128
Treasury stock, 39,625,305 shares at March 28, 2010 and June 28, 2009 (149,666) (149,666) 
Additional paid-in-capital 954,937 949,113
Accumulated other comprehensive income 1,677 1,323
Accumulated deficit (662,572) (659,388) 

Total stockholders� equity 144,505 141,510
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Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 250,362 $ 239,975

(1) The information in this column is derived from the Company�s consolidated balance sheet included in the Company�s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended June 28, 2009.

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

3

Edgar Filing: EXTREME NETWORKS INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 5



Table of Contents

EXTREME NETWORKS, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

(unaudited)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
March 28,

2010
March 29,

2009
March 28,

2010
March 29,

2009
Net revenues:
Product $ 63,197 $ 62,017 $ 178,425 $ 208,946
Service 15,000 15,185 45,478 45,330

Total net revenues 78,197 77,202 223,903 254,276

Cost of revenues:
Product 26,689 26,142 77,606 87,686
Service 6,169 6,642 18,417 22,049

Total cost of revenues 32,858 32,784 96,023 109,735

Gross profit:
Product 36,508 35,875 100,819 121,260
Service 8,831 8,543 27,061 23,281

Total gross profit 45,339 44,418 127,880 144,541

Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing 24,634 24,293 70,789 75,926
Research and development 11,277 13,928 37,309 44,457
General and administrative 6,135 6,967 19,890 22,818
Restructuring, net 371 2,092 4,004 2,092

Total operating expenses 42,417 47,280 131,992 145,293

Operating income (loss) 2,922 (2,862) (4,112) (752) 
Interest income 408 672 1,118 2,965
Interest expense (29) (23) (98) (92) 
Other income / (expense), net 160 411 (135) 1,727

Income (loss) before income taxes 3,461 (1,802) (3,227) 3,848
Provision for income taxes (215) 371 (42) 1,917

Net Income (Loss) $ 3,676 $ (2,173) $ (3,185) $ 1,931

Basic and diluted net income per share:
Net income (loss) per share - basic 0.04 (0.02) (0.04) 0.02
Net income (loss) per share - diluted 0.04 (0.02) (0.04) 0.02
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Shares used in per share calculation - basic 89,448 88,553 89,117 96,066
Shares used in per share calculation - diluted 89,696 88,553 89,117 96,139

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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EXTREME NETWORKS, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

(unaudited)

Nine Months Ended
March 28,

2010
March 29,

2009
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities:
Net (loss) income $ (3,185) $ 1,931
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 4,304 4,200
Loss / (gain) on value of option to put securities 516 (4,616) 
Mark to market, trading (gain) / loss on trading securities (516) 4,616
Provision for doubtful accounts �  232
Provision for excess and obsolete inventory 1,373 838
Deferred income taxes 48 124
Loss on retirement of assets 78 94
Stock-based compensation 4,571 2,630
Restructuring, net 4,004 2,092
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net
Accounts receivable 1,017 17,304
Inventories (12,626) (9,651) 
Prepaid expenses and other assets (303) (83) 
Accounts payable 6,082 (1,506) 
Accrued compensation and benefits (378) (7,323) 
Restructuring liabilities (6,677) (2,693) 
Accrued warranty 157 (1,630) 
Deferred revenue, net 136 (515) 
Deferred revenue, net of cost of sales to distributors 4,644 (1,693) 
Other accrued liabilities (189) (8,350) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 3,056 (3,999) 

Cash flows (used in) provided by investing activities:
Capital expenditures (3,610) (4,150) 
Purchases of investments (41,103) (33,645) 
Proceeds from maturities of investments and marketable securities 22,551 28,164
Proceeds from sales of investments and marketable securities 12,150 81,354

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (10,012) 71,723

Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 1,123 1,864
Repurchase of common stock, including expenses �  (101,363) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1,123 (99,499) 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (5,833) (31,775) 
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Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 46,195 70,370
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 40,362 $ 38,595

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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EXTREME NETWORKS, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of Extreme Networks, Inc. (referred to as the �Company� or �Extreme Networks�)
included herein have been prepared under the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�). Certain information and
footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles have been
condensed or omitted under such rules and regulations. The condensed consolidated balance sheet at June 28, 2009 was derived from audited
financial statements as of that date but does not include all disclosures required by generally accepted accounting principles for complete
financial statements. These interim financial statements and notes should be read in conjunction with the Company�s audited consolidated
financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 28, 2009. The
Company has evaluated all subsequent events through the date these interim financial statements were filed with the SEC.

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring adjustments and out of period
share based compensation adjustments totaling $0.9 million that, in the opinion of management, are necessary for a fair presentation of the
results of operations and cash flows for the interim periods presented and the financial condition of Extreme Networks at March 28, 2010. The
results of operations for the three and nine months ended March 28, 2010 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for
fiscal 2010 or any future periods.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Summary of Available-for-Sale Securities and Trading Securities

March 28,
2010

June 28,
2009

Cash equivalent $ 36,644 $ 43,367
Short-term investments 63,197 8,976
Marketable securities 24,358 72,231

Total available-for-sale and trading securities $ 124,199 $ 124,574

6
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EXTREME NETWORKS, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)�(Continued)

Available-for-Sale Securities

The following is a summary of available-for-sale securities (in thousands):

Amortized
Cost Fair Value

Unrealized
Holding
Gains

Unrealized
Holding
Losses

March 28, 2010:
Money market funds $ 36,644 $ 36,644 $ �  $ �  
U.S. corporate debt securities 45,451 45,697 289 (42) 
U.S. government agency securities 6,481 6,590 110 (2) 

$ 88,576 $ 88,931 $ 399 $ (44) 

Classified as:
Cash equivalents $ 36,644 $ 36,644 $ �  $ �  
Short-term investments 27,672 27,929 271 (14) 
Marketable securities 24,260 24,358 128 (30) 

$ 88,576 $ 88,931 $ 399 (44) 

Amortized
Cost

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Holding
Gains

Unrealized
Holding
Losses

June 28, 2009:
Money market funds $ 35,367 $ 35,367 $ �  $ �  
U.S. corporate debt securities 37,184 37,437 253 �  
U.S. government agency securities 10,829 10,987 158 �  

$ 83,380 $ 83,791 $ 411 $ �  

Classified as:
Cash equivalents $ 43,367 $ 43,367 $ �  $ �  
Short-term investments 8,965 8,976 11 �  
Marketable securities 31,048 31,448 400 �  

$ 83,380 $ 83,791 $ 411 $ �  

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of available-for-sale investments in debt securities at March 28, 2010, by contractual maturity, were
as follows (in thousands):

Amortized
Cost

Fair
Value
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Due in 1 year or less $ 27,672 $ 27,929
Due in 1-2 years 19,016 19,115
Due in 2-5 years 5,244 5,234
Due in more than 5 years �  �  

Total investments in available for sale debt securities $ 51,932 $ 52,287
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EXTREME NETWORKS, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)�(Continued)

The Company accumulates unrealized gains and losses on the Company�s available-for-sale debt securities, net of tax, in accumulated other
comprehensive income in the stockholders� equity section of its balance sheets. Such an unrealized gain or loss does not reduce net income for
the applicable accounting period. If the fair value of an available-for-sale debt instrument is less than its amortized cost basis, an
other-than-temporary impairment is triggered in circumstances where (1) the Company intends to sell the instrument, (2) it is more likely than
not that the Company will be required to sell the instrument before recovery of its amortized cost basis, or (3) the Company does not expect to
recover the entire amortized cost basis of the instrument (that is, a credit loss exists). If the Company intends to sell or it is more likely than not
that the Company will be required to sell the available-for-sale debt instrument before recovery of its amortized cost basis, the Company
recognizes an other-than-temporary impairment in earnings equal to the entire difference between the debt instruments� amortized cost basis and
its fair value. For available-for-sale debt instruments that are considered other-than-temporarily impaired due to the existence of a credit loss, if
the Company does not intend to sell and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the instrument before recovery of
its remaining amortized cost basis (amortized cost basis less any current-period credit loss), the Company separates the amount of the
impairment into the amount that is credit related and the amount due to all other factors. The credit loss component is recognized in earnings and
is the difference between the debt instrument�s amortized cost basis and the present value of its expected future cash flows. The remaining
difference between the debt instrument�s fair value and the present value of future expected cash flows is due to factors that are not credit related
and is recognized in other comprehensive income (loss).

The Company records unrealized and realized gains and losses on the Company�s trading securities, net of tax, in other income (expense), net, in
its statements of operations. Beginning in the second quarter of fiscal 2009, the Company classified its Auction Rate Securities as short-term
investments trading. The ARS are held with UBS AG (�UBS�) and the Company accepted a Rights offer on November 7, 2008 (see discussions
below). The ARS and Put Option (as defined below) represent a fair value of $35.3 million and are reflected in short-term investments trading as
of March 28, 2010. The reclassification to short-term investment is made based on the Company�s intention to exercise the Put Option which first
comes due in less than one year from the balance sheet date.

The following table presents the Company�s investments� gross unrealized losses and fair values, aggregated by investment category and length of
time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position.

Less than 12
months

12 months or
more Total

Fair Value
Unrealized

Losses
Fair

Value
Unrealized

Losses Fair Value
Unrealized

Losses
U.S. corporate debt securities $ 16,488 $ (42) $ �  $ �  $ 16,488 $ (42) 
U.S. government agency securities 1,000 (2) 1,000 (2) 

$ 17,488 $ (44) $ �  $ �  $ 17,488 $ (44) 

During the three and nine months ended March 28, 2010, realized gains or losses recognized on the sale of investments were not significant. The
unrealized gains / (losses) on the Company�s investments were caused by interest rate fluctuations. Substantially all of the Company�s
available-for-sale investments are investment grade government and corporate debt securities that have maturities of less than 3 years. The
Company does not intend to sell the investments and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the investments
before recovery of its amortized costs.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company measures certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis, including cash equivalents, available-for-sale
securities, trading securities and foreign currency derivatives. Fair value is measured based on a fair value hierarchy following three levels of
inputs, of which the first two are considered observable and the last unobservable:
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� Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

� Level 2 - Inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable
market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities; and

� Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets
or liabilities.

8
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EXTREME NETWORKS, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)�(Continued)

The following table presents the Company�s fair value hierarchy for its financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

March 28, 2010: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(In thousands)

Assets
Investments:
Federal agency notes $ �  $ 6,590 $ �  $ 6,590
Money market funds 36,644 36,644
Corporate notes/bonds 45,697 45,697
Auction rate securities 31,264 31,264
Put Option 4,004 4,004

Derivative instruments:
Foreign currency forward contracts (258) (258) 

Total $ 36,644 $ 52,029 $ 35,268 $ 123,941

June 28, 2009: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(In thousands)

Assets
Investments:
Commercial paper $ �  $ 8,000 $ �  $ 8,000
Federal agency notes 10,987 10,987
Money market funds 35,367 35,367
Corporate notes/bonds 29,437 29,437
Auction rate securities 36,263 36,263
Put Option 4,520 4,520

Derivative instruments:
Foreign currency forward contracts (58) (58) 

Total $ 35,367 $ 48,366 $ 40,783 $ 124,516

9
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EXTREME NETWORKS, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)�(Continued)

The following table provides a summary of changes in the fair value of the Company�s Level 3 financial assets for the nine months ended
March 28, 2010 (in thousands):

Auction Rate
Securities

Balance as of June 28, 2009 $ 36,263
Change in interest accrued 35
Change in unrealized loss 516
Redemptions at par (5,550) 

Balance as of March 28, 2010 $ 31,264

Put Option
Balance as of June 28, 2009 $ 4,520
Loss on Put Option (516) 

Balance as of March 28, 2010 $ 4,004

Level 3 assets consist of ARS whose underlying assets are student loans which are substantially backed by the federal government. Since the
auctions for these securities have continued to fail since February 2008, these investments are not currently trading and therefore do not have a
readily determinable market value. Accordingly, the estimated fair value of the ARS no longer approximates par value. These ARS are held by
UBS, the Company�s investment provider. In November 2008, the Company accepted an offer (the �Right�) from UBS entitling the Company to
sell at par value ARS originally purchased from UBS (approximately $40.5 million, par value) at anytime during a two-year period from
June 30, 2010 through July 2, 2012. Although the Company expects to sell its ARS under the Right, if the Right is not exercised before July 2,
2012, it will expire and UBS will have no further rights or obligation to buy the Company�s ARS. The enforceability of the Right results in the
creation of an asset akin to a Put Option (the Company has the right to �put� the ARS back to UBS at some specified date for a payment equal to
the par value of the ARS). The Put Option is a free standing asset separate from the ARS. The Company has valued the ARS and Put Option
using a discounted cash flow model based on Level 3 assumptions. The assumptions used in valuing the ARS and the Put Option include
estimates of, based on data available as of March 28, 2010, interest rates, timing and amount of cash flows, credit and liquidity premiums,
expected holding periods of the ARS and bearer risk associated with UBS�s financial ability to repurchase the ARS beginning June 30, 2010. The
Company intends to exercise the Right from UBS on June 30, 2010 and as a result has classified these ARS as short-term investments as of
March 28, 2010.

Revenue Recognition

The Company allocates revenue to each element of multiple element arrangements that include products containing software that is
more-than-incidental using the residual method based on vendor specific objective evidence of fair value of the undelivered elements. The
Company determines vendor specific objective evidence of fair value based on the price charged when the item is sold separately.

The Company derives the majority of its revenue from sales of its networking equipment, with the remaining revenue generated from service
fees relating to the service contracts, professional services, and training for its products. The Company generally recognizes product revenue
from its value-added resellers and end-user customers at the time of shipment, provided that persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists,
delivery has occurred, the price of the product is fixed or determinable, and collection of the sales proceeds is reasonably assured. In instances
where the criteria for revenue recognition are not met, revenue is deferred until all criteria have been met. Revenue from service obligations
under service contracts is deferred and recognized on a straight-line basis over the contractual service period. Service contracts typically range
from one to two years.
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The Company makes certain sales to partners in two distribution channels, or tiers. The first tier consists of a limited number of independent
distributors that sell primarily to resellers and, on occasion, to end-user customers. The Company defers recognition of revenue on all sales to
these distributors until the distributors sell the product, as evidenced by monthly �sales-out� reports that the distributors provide. The Company
grants these distributors the right to return a portion of unsold inventory for the purpose of stock rotation. The Company also grants these
distributors certain price protection rights. The distributor-related deferred revenue and
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EXTREME NETWORKS, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)�(Continued)

receivables are adjusted at the time of the stock rotation return or price reduction. The Company also provides distributors with credits for
changes in selling prices, and allows distributors to participate in cooperative marketing programs. The Company maintains estimated accruals
and allowances for these exposures based upon the Company�s historical experience. In connection with cooperative advertising programs, the
Company does not meet the criteria in its accounting policy for recognizing the expenses as marketing expenses and accordingly, the costs are
recorded as a reduction to revenue in the same period that the related revenue is recorded.

The second tier of the distribution channel consists of a large number of third-party value-added resellers that sell directly to end-users. For
product sales to value-added resellers, the Company does not grant return privileges, except for defective products during the warranty period,
nor does the Company grant pricing credits. Accordingly, the Company recognizes revenue upon transfer of title and risk of loss to the
value-added reseller, which is generally upon shipment. The Company reduces product revenue for cooperative marketing activities and certain
price protection rights that may occur under contractual arrangements with its resellers. The Company provides an allowance for sales returns
based on its historical returns, analysis of credit memo data and its return policies. The allowance for sales returns was $1.1 million and $0.9
million as of March 28, 2010 and June 28, 2009, respectively, for estimated future returns that were recorded as a reduction of our accounts
receivable. The provision for returns is charged to net revenue in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, and was zero and
$0.3 million in the three months ended March 28, 2010 and the three months ended March 29, 2009, respectively. The provision for returns was
$0.2 million and $0.1 million in the nine months ended March 28, 2010 and the nine months ended March 29, 2009, respectively. If the
historical data that the Company uses to calculate the estimated sales returns and allowances does not properly reflect future levels of product
returns, these estimates will be revised, thus resulting in an impact on future net revenue. The Company estimates and adjusts this allowance at
each balance sheet date.

Inventory, Net

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is computed using standard cost, which approximates actual cost, on a first-in, first-out
basis. The Company provides inventory allowances based on excess and obsolete inventories determined primarily by future demand forecasts.
At the point of the loss recognition, a new, lower-cost basis for that inventory is established, and subsequent changes in facts and circumstances
do not result in the restoration or increase in that newly established cost basis. Any written down or obsolete inventory subsequently sold has not
had a material impact on gross profit for any of the periods disclosed.

Inventories, which are net of write-downs for excess and obsolete inventory of $4.9 million and $4.7 million at March 28, 2010 and June 28,
2009 respectively, consist of (in thousands):

March 28,
2010

June 28,
2009

Raw materials $ 1,641 $ 42
Finished goods 21,997 12,338

Total $ 23,638 $ 12,380
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EXTREME NETWORKS, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)�(Continued)

Deferred Revenue, Net

Deferred revenue, net represents amounts for (i) deferred services revenue (support arrangements, professional services and training), and
(ii) deferred product revenue net of the related cost of revenue where the revenue recognition criteria have not been met related to sales by the
Company to its resellers or directly to its end-customers. Product revenue includes shipments to end-users and value-add resellers. The following
table summarizes deferred revenue, net at March 28, 2010 and June 28, 2009, respectively (in thousands):

March 28,
2010

June 28,
2009

Deferred services $ 36,861 $ 36,690
Deferred product
Deferred revenue 1,198 1,315
Deferred cost of sales (440) (522) 

Deferred product revenue, net 758 793

Balance at end of period 37,619 37,483
Less: current portion 30,697 30,058

Non-current deferred revenue, net $ 6,922 $ 7,425

The Company offers renewable support arrangements, including extended warranty contracts, to its customers that range generally from one to
five years. Deferred support revenue is included within deferred revenue, net within the deferred services category above. The change in the
Company�s deferred support revenue balance in relation to these arrangements was as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
March 28,

2010
March 29,

2009
March 28,

2010
March 29,

2009
Balance beginning of period $ 37,578 $ 37,931 $ 36,196 $ 38,778
New support arrangements 13,637 13,496 43,689 40,969
Recognition of support revenue (14,534) (13,709) (43,204) (42,029) 

Balance end of period 36,681 37,718 36,681 37,718
Less current portion 29,759 30,114 29,759 30,114

Non-current deferred revenue $ 6,922 $ 7,604 $ 6,922 $ 7,604

Deferred Revenue, Net of Cost of Sales to Distributors

At the time of shipment to distributors, the Company records a trade receivable at the contractual discount to list selling price since the Company
has a legally enforceable obligation for current payment from the distributor upon product delivery, the Company relieves inventory for the
carrying value of goods shipped since legal title has passed to the distributor, and the Company records deferred revenue and deferred cost of
sales in �Deferred revenue, net of cost of sales to distributors� in the liability section of its consolidated balance sheets. Deferred revenue, net of
cost of sales to distributors effectively represents the gross margin on the sale to the distributor; however, the amount of gross margin the
Company recognizes in future periods will frequently be less than the originally recorded deferred revenue, net of cost of sales to distributors as
a result of price concessions negotiated at time of sell-through to end customers. The Company sells each item in its product catalog to all of its
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distributors worldwide at contractually discounted prices. However, distributors resell the Company�s products to end customers at a very broad
range of individually negotiated price points based on customer, product, quantity, geography, competitive pricing, and other factors. The
majority of the Company�s distributors� resales are priced at a discount from list price. Often, under these circumstances, the Company remits
back to the distributor a portion of their original purchase price after the resale transaction is completed. Thus, a portion of the deferred revenue
balance represents a portion of distributors� original purchase price that will be remitted back to the distributor in the future. The wide range and
variability of negotiated price credits granted to distributors does not allow the Company to accurately estimate the portion of the balance in the
deferred revenue that will be remitted to the distributors. Therefore, the Company does not reduce deferred revenue by anticipated future price
credits; instead, price credits are typically recorded against accounts receivable when incurred, which is generally at the time the distributor sells
the product.

12
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The following table summarizes deferred revenue, net of cost of sales to distributors at March 28, 2010 and June 28, 2009, respectively (in
thousands):

March 28,
2010

June 28,
2009

Deferred revenue $ 19,515 $ 13,644
Deferred cost of Sales (5,050) (3,823) 

Total deferred revenue, net of cost of sales to distributors $ 14,465 $ 9,821

Guarantees and Product Warranties

The Company has standard product warranty liability. Upon issuance of the warranty, the Company discloses and recognizes a liability for the
fair value of the obligation under the warranty. The following table summarizes the activity related to the Company�s product warranty liability
(in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
March 28,

2010
March 29,

2009
March 28,

2010
March 29,

2009
Balance beginning of period $ 3,229 $ 3,516 $ 3,170 $ 4,824
New warranties issued 1,778 1,263 4,816 5,486
Warranty expenditures (1,681) (1,586) (5,223) (5,027) 
Change in estimates �  �  563 (2,090) 

Balance end of period $ 3,326 $ 3,193 $ 3,326 $ 3,193

The Company�s standard hardware warranty period is typically 12 months from the date of shipment to end-users. For certain access products,
the Company offers a lifetime hardware warranty commencing on the date of shipment from the Company and ending five years following the
Company�s announcement of the end of sale of such product. Upon shipment of products to the Company�s customers, the Company estimates
expenses for the cost to repair or replace products that may be returned under warranty and accrues a liability in cost of product revenue for this
amount. The determination of the Company�s warranty requirements is based on actual historical experience with the product or product family,
estimates of repair and replacement costs and any product warranty problems that are identified after shipment. The Company estimates and
adjusts these accruals at each balance sheet date in accordance with changes in these factors. For the nine months ended March 28, 2010, the
Company recorded $0.6 million for a change in estimate resulting from losses identified related to a failure in one of its products. In the three
months ended March 28, 2010, the Company recovered in a settlement all estimated costs related to this issue from its outside design
manufacturer.

In the normal course of business to facilitate sales of the Company�s products, the Company indemnifies the Company�s resellers and end-user
customers with respect to certain matters. The Company has agreed to hold the customer harmless against losses arising from a breach of
intellectual property infringement or other claims made against certain parties. These agreements may limit the time within which an
indemnification claim can be made and the amount of the claim. It is not possible to estimate the maximum potential amount under these
indemnification agreements due to the limited history of prior indemnification claims and the unique facts and circumstances involved in each
particular agreement. Historically, payments made by the Company under these agreements have not had a material impact on the Company�s
operating results or financial position.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards
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The following standards should be read in conjunction with the standards documented in Recently Issued Accounting Standards under Note 2 to
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 28, 2009.

In February 2010, the FASB issued a new accounting standards update that eliminated the requirement for an entity that is an SEC filer to
disclose the date through which subsequent events have been evaluated in its financial statement disclosures. This new accounting standards
update is effective upon release. The adoption of the new accounting standards update did not have a material impact on the Company�s
consolidated results of operations, financial condition or financial disclosures.

13
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In January 2010, the FASB issued a new accounting standards update for fair value measurements and disclosures. A reporting entity should
disclose separately the amounts of significant transfers in and out of Level 1 and Level 2 and describe the reasons for the transfers. A reporting
entity should separately disclose information about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements for Level 3 reconciliation disclosures. The new
disclosures and clarifications of existing disclosures are effective for financial statements issued interim or annual financial periods ending after
December 15, 2009, with the exception for the reconciliation disclosures for Level 3, which are effective for financial statements issued interim
or annual financial periods ending after December 15, 2010. The adoption of the new accounting standards update did not have a material impact
on the Company�s consolidated results of operations, financial condition or financial disclosures.

In October 2009, the FASB issued a new accounting standard which excludes from the scope of software revenue guidance the revenue
arrangements that include tangible products containing software components and non-software components that function together to deliver the
tangible product�s essential functionality. At the same time, the FASB also issued a new accounting standard which updates existing guidance
pertaining to the separation and allocation of consideration in a multiple element arrangement. This new guidance will be applicable to the
Company�s multiple element arrangements that include such tangible products. The new standards are effective prospectively for revenue
arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010. The Company is currently evaluating the
impact that the adoption of the new accounting standards may have on its consolidated results of operations and financial condition.

In June 2009, the FASB issued a new accounting standard which approved the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) as the single
source of authoritative accounting principles. The codification does not change GAAP, but instead reorganizes the existing authoritative
standards into a comprehensive, topically organized online database to simplify user access to all authoritative U.S. GAAP. Companies may
elect to disclose the new ASC codes, disclose both new ASC codes and old FASB accounting literature references, or completely remove all
references to accounting literature. The Company chose to remove all references to accounting literature and previous references to applicable
literature in the Company�s disclosures are removed in the Company�s Form 10Q effective in the first quarter of fiscal 2010. As the codification
did not change GAAP, the adoption of ASC did not have a material impact on the Company�s consolidated financial statements.

2. Share-Based Compensation

Share-Based Compensation

Share-based compensation recognized in the condensed consolidated financial statements by line item caption is as follows (dollars in
thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
March 28,

2010
March 29,

2009
March 28,

2010
March 29,

2009
Cost of product revenue $ 128 $ 93 $ 343 $ 109
Cost of service revenue 140 79 361 173
Sales and marketing 413 420 1,392 923
Research and development 338 387 1,324 848
General and administrative 393 255 1,151 578

Total share-based compensation expense 1,412 1,234 4,571 2,631
Share-based compensation cost capitalized in inventory (4) 3 4 (4) 

Total share-based compensation cost $ 1,408 $ 1,237 $ 4,575 $ 2,627

The weighted-average grant-date per share fair value of options granted in the third quarter of fiscal 2010 and 2009 were $1.21 and $0.53,
respectively. The weighted-average estimated per share fair value of shares purchased under the Company�s 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
(�ESPP�) in the third quarter of fiscal 2010 and 2009 were $0.69 and $0.63, respectively.
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The weighted-average grant-date per share fair values of options granted in the first nine months of fiscal 2010 and 2009 were $0.91 and $0.54,
respectively. The weighted-average estimated per share fair values of shares purchased under ESPP in the first nine months of fiscal 2010 and
2009 were $0.67 and $0.68, respectively.

The Company uses the straight-line method for expense attribution, and the Company estimates forfeitures and only recognizes expense for
those shares expected to vest. The Company�s estimated forfeiture rate in the third quarter of fiscal 2010 based on the Company�s historical
forfeiture experience is approximately 9%.

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton option valuation model with the weighted
average assumptions noted in the following table. The expected term of options granted is derived from historical data on employee exercise and
post-vesting employment termination behavior. The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life of the option is based on the U.S.
Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. Expected volatility is based on both the implied volatilities from traded options on the
Company�s stock and historical volatility on the Company�s stock.
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The fair value of each option award and ESPP is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton option valuation model with the
weighted average assumptions noted in the following table. The expected term of options granted is derived from historical data on employee
exercise and post-vesting employment termination behavior. The expected term of ESPP represents the contractual life of the ESPP purchase
period. The risk-free rate based upon the estimated life of the option and ESPP is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of
grant. Expected volatility is based on both the implied volatilities from traded options on the Company�s stock and historical volatility on the
Company�s stock.

Stock Option Plans Employee Stock Purchase Plans
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

March 28,
2010

March 29,
2009

March 28,
2010

March 29,
2009

March 28,
2010

March 29,
2009

March 28,
2010

March 29,
2009

Expected life 3.0 yrs 2.5 yrs 3.0 yrs 2.5 yrs 0.25 yrs 0.25 yrs 0.25 yrs 0.25 yrs
Risk-free interest rate 1.4% 1.7% 1.4% 1.4% 0.2% 0.3% 0.2% 0.9% 
Volatility 67% 46% 59% 41% 62% 95% 75% 74% 
Expected dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
The Black-Scholes-Merton option valuation model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected life of the
share-based award and stock price volatility. The assumptions listed above represent management�s best estimates, but these estimates involve
inherent uncertainties and the application of management judgment. As a result, if other assumptions had been used, the Company�s share-based
compensation cost could have been materially different from that recorded. In addition, the Company is required to estimate the expected
forfeiture rate and only recognize expense for those shares expected to vest. If the Company�s actual forfeiture rate is materially different from
the Company�s estimate, the share-based compensation expense could be materially different.

Adjustments to Share-Based Compensation Expense During the Nine Months Ended March 28, 2010

The Company was notified by its third party software provider that it had made certain changes to how its software program calculates
stock-based compensation expense. Specifically, the prior version of this software that the Company had been using calculated stock-based
compensation expense by incorrectly applying a weighted average forfeiture rate to the vested portion of stock option awards until the grant�s
final vest date, rather than calculating stock-based compensation expense based upon the actual vested portion of the grant date fair value,
resulting in an understatement of stock-based compensation expense in certain periods prior to the grant�s final vest date. Consequently, the
Company identified errors in the calculation of stock-based compensation expense for fiscal years ended June 29, 2008, July 1, 2007 and July 2,
2006. The errors identified relate only to the timing of stock-based compensation expense recognition.

The Company determined that the cumulative error from the understatement of stock-based compensation expense related to the periods
discussed above totaled $0.9 million through June 29, 2008. The impact of the errors on the fiscal years ended June 29, 2008, July 1, 2007 and
July 2, 2006, is to decrease net income by $0.3 million for each year.

Management has determined that the impact of this error is not material to the previously issued annual and interim financial statements.
Accordingly, the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended March 28, 2010 include the cumulative
adjustment to increase stock-based compensation expense by $0.9 million (or $0.01 per share) to correct these errors. The Company does not
believe the correction of these errors is material to the condensed consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended March 28, 2010
and does not believe that it will be material to the annual consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 27, 2010.

3. Commitments, Contingencies and Leases

Line of Credit

The Company had a revolving line of credit for $10.0 million with a major lending institution which expired on January 22, 2010. The Company
at its own discretion made a decision to not renew this line of credit.
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As of March 28, 2010, the Company had outstanding letters of credit totaling $0.2 million secured by cash. These letters of credit are primarily
issued in lieu of making cash deposits with third parties.

In October 2008, UBS and the Company entered into a secured line of credit collateralized by the Company�s ARS held by UBS. The maximum
amount of credit available under this line of credit is $28.8 million. On November 7, 2008 the Company accepted the UBS Rights offer from
UBS and hence the terms of the �no net cost� loan program apply to this line of credit. Under this program, the interest rate on this secured credit
facility will be equivalent to the interest rate earned by the Company on the ARS at UBS, resulting in no net interest cost to the Company. There
are currently no outstanding borrowings under this line of credit.

Purchase Commitments

The Company currently has arrangements with three contract manufacturers and other suppliers for the manufacture of the Company�s products.
The Company�s arrangements allow it to procure long lead-time component inventory on the Company�s behalf based upon a rolling production
forecast provided by us. The Company is obligated for the purchase of long lead-time component inventory that the Company�s contract
manufacturers procure in accordance with the forecast, unless the Company gives notice of order cancellation outside of applicable component
lead-times. As of March 28, 2010, the Company had non-cancelable commitments to purchase approximately $48.9 million of such inventory.

Legal Proceedings

The Company may from time to time be party to litigation arising in the course of its business, including, without limitation, allegations relating
to commercial transactions, business relationships or intellectual property rights. Such claims, even if not meritorious, could result in the
expenditure of significant financial and managerial resources. Litigation in general, and intellectual property and securities litigation in
particular, can be expensive and disruptive to normal business operations. Moreover, the results of legal proceedings are difficult to predict.

Other Legal Matters

On April 25, 2007, an individual identifying herself as one of the Company�s shareholders filed a derivative action in the United States District
Court for the Northern District of California purporting to assert claims on behalf of and in the name of the Company against various of its
current and former directors and officers relating to historical stock option granting from 1999 to 2002 and related accounting practices. Two
similar derivative actions were filed thereafter in the same court by other individuals and the three cases were consolidated by order of the Court.
After two amended complaints were filed by the lead plaintiff, the Company filed a motion to dismiss the second amended complaint, which was
granted without prejudice on August 12, 2008.

On August 22, 2008, Kathleen Wheatley, an individual identifying herself as one of the Company�s shareholders, filed a motion for the Court to
reconsider its ruling on August 12, 2008 granting the Company�s motion to dismiss. In response, the Company asked the Court to reject
Ms. Wheatley�s motion on various grounds, including that Ms. Wheatley is not a party to this derivative action. The Court has not yet ruled on
Ms. Wheatley�s motion. On September 4, 2008, Ms. Wheatley filed both a motion to intervene in the derivative action and a third amended
complaint, which differs little from the first amended complaint. The third amended complaint continues to allege that various of the Company�s
current and former directors and officers breached their fiduciary duties and other obligations to the Company and violated state and federal
securities laws in connection with the Company�s historical grants of stock options. The Company is named as a nominal defendant in the action,
but the Company has customary indemnification agreements with the named defendants. On behalf of the Company, Ms. Wheatley seeks
unspecified monetary and other relief against the named defendants. The Court has granted Ms. Wheatley�s motion to intervene. On October 16,
2008, The Company, as nominal defendant, moved to dismiss the third amended complaint. On November 17, 2009, the Court denied Company�s
motion to dismiss the third amended complaint, and on December 3, 3009, the Company filed a motion for reconsideration or in the alternative,
a motion to certify the Order denying the Motion to Dismiss for immediate appeal. On December 30, 2009, the Court issued an Order granting
the Company leave to file the motion for reconsideration and will rule on the Company�s alternative motion to certify the Order for appeal if it
denies the motion for reconsideration. On April 2, 2010, the Court denied the Company�s Motion for Reconsideration and for Stay of Action and
Certification and Appeal. The Company intends to continue to defend the derivative action vigorously, but due to the uncertainty of litigation,
the Company cannot predict the ultimate outcome of this matter at this time.
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Indemnification Obligations

Subject to certain limitations, the Company may be obligated to indemnify its current and former directors, officers and employees. These
obligations arise under the terms of its certificate of incorporation, its bylaws, applicable contracts, and Delaware and California law. The
obligation to indemnify, where applicable, generally means that the Company is required to pay or reimburse, and in certain circumstances the
Company has paid or reimbursed, the individuals� reasonable legal expenses and possibly damages and other liabilities incurred in connection
with these matters. It is not possible to estimate the maximum potential amount under these indemnification agreements due to the limited
history of these claims. The cost to defend the Company and the named individuals could have a material adverse effect on its consolidated
financial position, results of operations and cash flows in the future. Recovery of such costs under its directors and officers insurance coverage is
uncertain.
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4. Comprehensive Income (Loss) and Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) was as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
March 28,

2010
March 29,

2009
March 28,

2010
March 29,

2009
Net income (loss) $ 3,676 $ (2,173) $ (3,185) $ 1,931
Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Change in unrealized gain on investments:
Net unrealized (loss) gain on ARS recorded to other �  (1) �  2,517
Net unrealized (loss) gain on other investments (167) (329) (56) 269

Net unrealized (loss) gain on investments (167) (330) (56) 2,786
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Beginning balance 1,602 999 912 2,025
Ending balance 1,322 226 1,322 226

Foreign currency translation adjustments change (280) (773) 410 (1,799) 
Total comprehensive income (loss) $ 3,229 $ (3,276) $ (2,831) $ 2,918

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following are the components of accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax (in thousands):

March 28,
2010

June 28,
2009

Accumulated unrealized gain on investments $ 355 $ 411
Accumulated foreign currency translation adjustments 1,322 912

Accumulated other comprehensive income $ 1,677 $ 1,323

5. Income Taxes

The Company recorded an income tax benefit of $0.2 million and income tax expense of $0.4 million for the third quarter of fiscal 2010 and
third quarter of fiscal 2009, respectively. The reduction in tax expense is related to a $0.8 million release of a foreign tax reserve. The income
tax provision for the three months ended March 28, 2010 and March 29, 2009 consisted primarily of taxes on foreign income, state income tax
and the U.S Federal alternative minimum tax. The income tax provisions for both quarters were calculated based on the results of operations for
the three months ended March 28, 2010 and March 29, 2009, and may not reflect the annual effective rate. Since the Company has net operating
loss carry forwards to offset U.S. taxable income, the Company is not using an annual effective tax rate to apply to the taxable income for the
quarter.
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The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the
tax bases of assets and liabilities. Significant management judgment is required in determining the Company�s deferred tax assets and liabilities
and any valuation allowance recorded against the Company�s net deferred tax assets. The Company makes an assessment of the likelihood that
the Company�s net deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income, and to the extent that recovery is not believed to be likely, a
valuation allowance is established.

The Company has established a full valuation allowance for the Company�s U.S. net deferred tax assets. The valuation allowance was calculated
by assessing both negative and positive evidence when measuring the need for a valuation allowance. Evidence, such as recent quarterly losses
and the challenge of forecasting financials in this economic environment, was given more weight than recent cumulative profits. Accordingly,
we believe that there is sufficient negative evidence to require a full valuation allowance against our U.S federal and state net deferred tax assets.
This valuation allowance will be evaluated periodically and can be reversed partially or totally if business results have sufficiently improved to
support realization of the Company�s U.S. deferred tax assets.
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The Company had unrecognized tax benefits of approximately $22.8 million as of March 28, 2010. The future impact of the unrecognized tax
benefit of $22.8 million, if recognized, is as follows: approximately $1.3 million would affect the effective tax rate, and approximately $21.5
million would result in adjustments to deferred tax assets and corresponding adjustment to the valuation allowance. It is reasonably possible that
the amount of unrealized tax benefits including accrued interest could decrease by approximately $0.6 million during the next 12 months due to
the expiration of the statue of limitations in certain foreign jurisdictions.

Estimated interest and penalties related to the underpayment of income taxes are classified as a component of tax expense in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Operations and totaled approximately $19,000 for the quarter ended March 28, 2010. Accrued interest and penalties
were approximately $0.4 million and $0.5 million as of March 28, 2010 and March 29, 2009, respectively.

In general, the Company�s U.S. federal income tax returns are subject to examination by tax authorities for fiscal years 2007 forward, the
Company�s state income tax returns are subject to examination for fiscal years 2006 forward, and the Company�s Netherlands income tax returns
are subject to examination for fiscal years 2004 forward.

6. Net Income Per Share

Basic net income per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
period and excludes any dilutive effects of options and stock awards. Diluted net income per share is calculated by dividing net income by the
weighted average number of common shares used in the basic earnings per share calculation plus the dilutive effect of options and stock awards.

The following table presents the calculation of basic and diluted net income (loss) per share (in thousands, except per share data):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
March 28,

2010
March 29,

2009
March 28,

2010
March 29,

2009
Net income (loss) $ 3,676 $ (2,173) $ (3,185) $ 1,931

Weighted-average shares used in per share calculation � basic 89,448 88,553 89,117 96,066
Incremental shares using the treasury stock method:
Stock options 237 �  �  18
Unvested restricted awards 11 �  �  55

Weighted -average share used in per share calculation � diluted 89,696 88,553 89,117 96,139

Net income (loss) per share � basic $ 0.04 $ (0.02) $ (0.04) $ 0.02
Net income (loss) per share � diluted $ 0.04 $ (0.02) $ (0.04) $ 0.02

The following table sets forth weighted stock options outstanding that are not included in the diluted net income per share calculation above
because to do so would be antidilutive for the periods (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
March 28,

2010
March 29,

2009
March 28,

2010
March 29,

2009
Stock options outstanding:
In-the-money options �  13 2,324 �  

Edgar Filing: EXTREME NETWORKS INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 31



Out-of-the-money options 11,715 18,766 13,574 18,363

Total potential shares of common stock excluded from the computation of
earnings per share 11,715 18,779 15,898 18,363
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Weighted stock options outstanding with an exercise price lower than the Company�s average stock price for the periods presented
(�in-the-money options�) are excluded from the calculation of diluted net loss per share in the three months ended March 29, 2009 and nine
months ended March 28, 2010 since the effect of including them would have been anti-dilutive due to the net loss position of the Company
during the periods presented.

Weighted stock options outstanding with an exercise price higher than the Company�s average stock price for the periods presented
(�out-of-the-money options�) are excluded from the calculation of diluted net income per share since the effect would have been anti-dilutive
under the treasury stock method.

7. Restructuring Liabilities

The Company�s restructuring costs consist of termination benefits, excess facilities and asset impairments. Termination benefits generally include
severance, outplacement services, health insurance coverage, and legal costs. Excess facilities costs generally include rent expense less expected
sublease income, lease termination costs and asset abandonment costs. Asset impairments include adjustments to basis of assets as a result of
restructuring activities.

As of March 28, 2010, restructuring liabilities were $4.3 million and consisted of obligations associated with the Company�s excess facilities
under operating leases and termination benefits related to the reduction in the Company�s workforce which occurred in the second quarter of
fiscal 2010. Excess facilities were identified in the prior years from fiscal 2004 through 2009 and the Company has remaining obligations
associated with these facilities. During the third quarter of fiscal 2010, the Company paid termination benefits related to the reduction in force
which occurred in the second quarter of fiscal 2010. Actual payments were higher than the estimated amount therefore the Company accrued an
additional $0.2 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2010. In addition, the Company had an increase in operating expenses related to one of its
restructured facilities and recognized an additional $0.2 million of expense in the third quarter of fiscal 2010.

Activity with respect to restructuring liabilities is as follows (in thousands):

Excess
Facilities

Asset
Impairment

Contract
Termination Severance

Acceleration
of Stock
Awards Total

Balance June 28, 2009 $ 6,337 $ �  $ �  $ 741 $ �  $ 7,078
Period charges 232 449 77 3,763 126 $ 4,647
Period reversals (529) �  �  (110) �  $ (639) 
Write-off �  (65) �  �  (126) $ (191) 
Period payments (2,184) (384) (77) (3,973) �  $ (6,618) 

Balance March 28, 2010 3,856 �  �  421 �  4,277
Less: current portion 2,821 �  �  421 �  3,242

Restructuring liabilities at March 28, 2010, less
current portion $ 1,035 $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  $ 1,035

8. Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts

The Company records all derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognized in earnings. The
Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts to mitigate the effect of gains and losses generated by the foreign currency forecasted
transactions related to certain operating expenses and remeasurement of certain assets and liabilities denominated in Japanese Yen, the Euro, the
Swedish Krona, the Indian Rupee and the British Pound. These derivatives do not qualify as hedges. At March 28, 2010, these forward foreign
currency contracts had a notional principal amount of $21.8 million and fair value was $0.3 million. These contracts have maturities of less than
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60 days. Changes in the fair value of these foreign exchange forward contracts are offset largely by remeasurement of the underlying assets and
liabilities.

The Company does not enter into foreign exchange forward contracts for speculative or trading purposes. Foreign currency transaction gains and
losses from operations were a loss of $0.1 million in both third quarters of fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009. Foreign currency transaction gains and
losses from operations were a loss of $0.3 million in the first nine months of fiscal 2010 and gain of $0.6 million in the first nine months of fiscal
2009.
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9. Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and Geographic Areas

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated
regularly by the chief operating decision makers with respect to the allocation of resources and performance.

The Company operates in one segment, the development and marketing of network infrastructure equipment. The Company conducts business
globally and is managed geographically. Revenue is attributed to a geographical area based on the location of the customers. The Company
operates in three geographical areas: North America, which includes the United States, Canada and Central America; EMEA, which includes
Europe, Middle East, Africa and South America; and APAC which includes Asia Pacific and Japan.

Information regarding geographic areas is as follows (in thousands):

Three months ended
March 28, 2010

Three months ended
March 29, 2009

Nine months ended
March 28, 2010

Nine months ended
March 29, 2009

$
% of Net
Revenues $

% of Net
Revenues $

% of Net
Revenues $

% of Net
Revenues

Net Revenue:
North America $ 32,581 41.67% $ 26,938 34.89% $ 86,937 38.83% $ 96,039 37.77% 
EMEA 31,055 39.71% 38,464 49.82% 96,954 43.30% 122,235 48.07% 
APAC 14,561 18.62% 11,800 15.29% 40,012 17.87% 36,002 14.16% 

Total net revenue $ 78,197 100.00% $ 77,202 100.00% $ 223,903 100.00% $ 254,276 100.00% 

Only one customer, Tech Data, accounted for greater than 10% of the Company�s revenue in the third quarter of fiscal 2010. Two customers,
Tech Data and Westcon, accounted for greater than 10% of the Company�s revenue in the third quarter of fiscal 2009.

Tech Data was also the Company�s only customer to account for greater than 10% of the Company�s revenue in the first nine months of fiscal
2010. Two customers, Tech Data and Ericsson AB, accounted for greater than 10% of the Company�s revenue in the first nine months of fiscal
2009.

Substantially all of the Company�s assets were attributable to North America operations at March 28, 2010 and March 29, 2009.

10. Employee Stock Option Exchange Program

On December 23, 2009, the Company�s stockholders approved a voluntary program (�Exchange Program�) that permitted eligible employees to
exchange certain outstanding stock options that were �underwater� for a lesser number of shares of restricted stock units to be granted under the
Extreme Networks, Inc. 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (the �2005 Plan�) and to exchange certain other stock options that are more substantially
underwater for a cash payment. The Exchange Program was open to all of the Company�s United States employees, except for members of its
Board of Directors and its executive officers. The Exchange Program commenced on February 4, 2010 and ended March 4, 2010. On March 5,
2010, the Company cancelled a total of 3,058,761 tendered stock options, issued a total of 569,189 replacement restricted stock units under the
2005 Plan, and incurred a cash outlay of $8,769 which was paid out at the end of March 2010.
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Item 2. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
This quarterly report on Form 10-Q, including the following sections, contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, particularly, our expectations regarding results of operations, the general economic environment, our
ability to expand our market penetration, our ability to expand our distribution channels, customer acceptance of our products, our ability to
meet the expectations of our customers, product demand and revenue, cash flows, product gross profits, our expectations to continue to develop
new products and enhance existing products, our expectations regarding the amount of our research and development expenses, our
expectations relating to our selling, general and administrative expenses, our efforts to achieve additional operating efficiencies and to review
and improve our business systems and cost structure, our expectations to continue investing in technology, resources and infrastructure, our
expectations concerning the availability of products from suppliers and contract manufacturers, anticipated product costs and sales prices, our
expectations that we have sufficient capital to meet our requirements for at least the next twelve months, our expectations regarding the
rationalization of our workforce and facilities, and our expectations regarding materials and inventory management. These forward-looking
statements involve risks and uncertainties. We caution investors that actual results may differ materially from those projected in the
forward-looking statements as a result of certain risk factors identified in the section entitled �Risk Factors� in this Report, our Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the first and second quarters of fiscal 2010, our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 28, 2009,
and other filings we have made with the Securities and Exchange Commission. These risk factors, include, but are not limited to: fluctuations in
demand for our products and services; a highly competitive business environment for network switching equipment; our effectiveness in
controlling expenses; the possibility that we might experience delays in the development of new technology and products; customer response to
our new technology and products; the timing of any recovery in the global economy; risks related to pending or future litigation; and a
dependency on third parties for certain components and for the manufacturing of our products.

Business Overview

We develop and sell network infrastructure equipment and offer related services contracts for extended warranty and maintenance to our
enterprise, data center and metropolitan telecommunications service provider customers. Substantially all of our revenue is derived from the sale
of our networking equipment and related service contracts. In the three months ended March 28, 2010, our revenue increased $1.0 million, gross
profit increased $1.0 million, operating profit increased $5.8 million and net income increased $5.8 million as compared to the three months
ended March 29, 2009. In the nine months ended March 28, 2010, our revenue decreased $30.4 million, gross profit decreased $16.7 million,
operating loss increased $3.4 million and net loss increased $5.1 million as compared to the nine months ended March 29, 2009.

We believe that considering the following key developments will assist investors in understanding our operating results for the three and nine
months ended March 28, 2010.

Supply Chain Constraints

We use our forecast of expected demand to determine our material requirements. Lead times for materials and components we order vary
significantly, and depend on factors such as the specific supplier, contract terms and demand for a component at a given time. In the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2009, customer orders exceeded our forecast, especially with respect to certain products. In addition, our contract manufacturers
and their component suppliers had significantly reduced their capacity due to the world-wide economic slowdown, and therefore lead times
significantly increased during the first fiscal quarter across our supply chain as our contract manufacturers and their component suppliers
struggled to meet increasing demands. As a result, we were unable to deliver products based on customer requests. This adversely affected our
revenue and sales for the first quarter of fiscal 2010 since we were unable to deliver products in that quarter in a timely manner and certain
customers cancelled orders or chose other vendors based on product availability. We have made substantial progress with our suppliers to
improve timely delivery of our products to meet customers� demands in the second and third quarters of fiscal 2010. We continue to work to
manage our forecast and supply chain in light of our customers� demands as accurately as possible. As a result of improvements in the supply
change, cost controls and increased revenue, our financial results improved from the second quarter to the third quarter of fiscal 2010.

Impact of the Global Economic Developments

In addition to issues with our supply chain, we believe that the credit market crisis, global recession and other challenges affecting economic
conditions in the United States and other parts of the world were the significant drivers of our financial performance during the first nine months
of fiscal 2010. Sales in the United States and some European countries were most impacted as a result of the weak U.S. economy and the global
credit crisis in the financial market, while sales in Asia were only minimally impacted by global economic developments and grew during the
period. We believe that limited access to credit, conservative purchasing patterns and delays or cancellation of IT infrastructure plans in the face
of continued uncertainty regarding the global economy, may continue to negatively impact overall demand for networking solutions, including
Ethernet equipment.
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We have taken and plan to continue to take other steps to manage our business in the current economic environment. For example, we have
managed from time to time our contingent work force, scheduled shutdown weeks, reduced travel and other discretionary spending, and
controlled all hiring activities.

Increasing Demand for Bandwidth

We believe that the continued increase in demand for bandwidth will over time drive future demand for high performance Ethernet solutions.
Wide-spread adoption of electronic communications in all aspects of our lives, proliferation of next generation converged mobile devices and
deployment of triple-play services to residences and businesses alike, continues to generate demand for greater network performance across
broader geographic locations. In parallel to these transformational forces within society and the community at large, the accelerating adoption of
internet and intranet �cloud� solutions within business enterprises is enabling organizations to offer greater business scalability to improve
efficiency and through more effective operations, improve profitability. In order to realize the benefits of these developments, customers require
additional bandwidth and high performance from their network infrastructure at affordable prices. As the economy continues its paced recovery,
we are already seeing the initial indications that the Ethernet segment of the networking equipment market will return to growth as enterprise,
data center and carrier customers continue to recognize the performance and operating cost benefits of Ethernet technology.

Expanding Product Portfolio

We believe that continued success in our marketplace is dependent upon a variety of factors that includes, but is not limited to, our ability to
design, develop and distribute new and enhanced products employing leading-edge technology. During the third quarter of fiscal 2010, we
further extended our Ethernet product portfolio through the addition of the Summit X480 family of products targeted at Data Center customers, a
further set of modules for the BlackDiamond 8900 family and the next release of the ExtremeXOS modular operating system, release 12.4.1. All
of these products were announced and were available for shipment in the quarter.

Industry Developments

The market for network infrastructure equipment is highly competitive and dominated by a few large companies. The difficult economic climate
has further driven consolidation of vendors within the Ethernet networking market and with vendors from adjacent markets, including storage,
security, wireless and voice applications. We believe that the underpinning technology for all of these adjacent markets is Ethernet. As a result,
independent Ethernet switch vendors are being acquired or merged with larger, adjacent market vendors to enable them to deliver complete and
broad solutions. As a result, we believe that, as an independent Ethernet switch vendor, we must provide products that, when combined with the
products of our large strategic partners, create compelling solutions for end user customers.

Restructuring

During the third quarter of fiscal 2010, we paid termination benefits related to the reduction in our workforce which occurred in the second
quarter of fiscal 2010. Actual payments were higher than the estimated amount therefore we accrued an additional $0.2 million in the third
quarter of fiscal 2010. In addition, we had an increase in operating expenses related to one of our restructured facilities and recognized an
additional $0.2 million of expense in the third quarter of fiscal 2010.

As a result of the reduction in force in the second quarter of fiscal 2010, operating expenses significantly decreased for the three and nine
months ended March 28, 2010 as compared to the three and nine months ended March 29, 2009, as discussed further below.

Results of Operations

During the third quarter of fiscal 2010, we experienced the following results:

� Net revenue of $78.2 million, compared to net revenue of $77.2 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2009.

� Total gross profit of 58.0% of net revenue, compared to 57.5% in the third quarter of fiscal 2009.
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� Operating income of $2.9 million compared to operating loss of $2.9 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2009.

� Net income of $3.7 million, compared to net loss of $2.2 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2009.
During the nine months ended March 28, 2010, we experienced the following results:

� Net revenue of $223.9 million, compared to net revenue of $254.3 million for the nine months ended March 29, 2009.

� Total gross profit of 57.1% of net revenue, compared to total gross profit of 56.8% of net revenue for the nine months ended
March 29, 2009.
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� Operating loss of $4.1 million compared to operating loss of $0.8 million for the nine months ended March 29, 2009.

� Net loss of $3.2 million, compared to net income of $1.9 million for the nine months ended March 29, 2009.

� Operating cash flow was $3.1 million positive for the nine months ending March 28, 2010. Cash and cash equivalents, short-term
investments and marketable securities increased by $0.5 million in the nine months ended March 28, 2010 to $127.9 million,
primarily as a result of cash flow from operations for the nine months ended March 28, 2010.

Net Revenue

The following table presents net product and service revenue for the three month and nine month period ended March 28, 2010 and March 29,
2009, respectively (dollars in thousands):

Three months ended
March 28, 2010

Three months ended
March 29, 2009

Nine months ended
March 28, 2010

Nine months ended
March 29, 2009

$
% of Net
Revenues $

% of Net
Revenues $

% of Net
Revenues $

% of Net
Revenues

Net Revenue:
Product $ 63,197 80.82% $ 62,017 80.33% $ 178,425 79.69% $ 208,946 82.17% 
Service 15,000 19.18% 15,185 19.67% 45,478 20.31% 45,330 17.83% 

Total net revenue $ 78,197 100.00% $ 77,202 100.00% $ 223,903 100.00% $ 254,276 100.00% 

Net revenue was $78.2 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2010 and $77.2 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2009, representing an increase of
$1.0 million or 1% in the third quarter of fiscal 2010 from the third quarter of fiscal 2009. The increase was primarily due to stronger sales in the
U.S. due to higher than average deal size and increased revenue in Mexico.

Net revenue for the first nine months of fiscal 2010 was $223.9 million, which was a decrease of $30.4 million or 12% from net revenue of
$254.3 million in the first nine months of fiscal 2009. The decrease was primarily due to lower sales driven by supply constraints in the first
quarter of fiscal 2010 and competitive pricing.

Product revenue was $63.2 million for the third quarter of fiscal 2010 compared to $62.0 million for the third quarter of fiscal 2009, an increase
of $1.2 million, or 2%. Product revenue was $178.4 million for the first nine months of fiscal 2010, compared to $208.9 million for the first nine
months of fiscal 2009, a decrease of $30.5 million or 15%.

Service revenue was effectively even from the three and nine months ended March 28, 2010 as compared to the three and nine months ended
March 29, 2009.

We operate in three regions: North America, which includes the United States, Canada and Central America; EMEA, which includes Europe,
Middle East, Africa and South America; and APAC which includes Asia Pacific and Japan. The following table presents the total net revenue
geographically for the three and nine months period ended March 28, 2010 and March 29, 2009 (dollars in thousands):

Three months ended
March 28, 2010

Three months ended
March 29, 2009

Nine months ended
March 28, 2010

Nine months ended
March 29, 2009

$
% of Net
Revenues $

% of Net
Revenues $

% of Net
Revenues $

% of Net
Revenues

Net Revenue:
North America $ 32,581 41.67% $ 26,938 34.89% $ 86,937 38.83% $ 96,039 37.77% 
EMEA 31,055 39.71% 38,464 49.82% 96,954 43.30% 122,235 48.07% 
APAC 14,561 18.62% 11,800 15.29% 40,012 17.87% 36,002 14.16% 
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Total net revenue $ 78,197 100.00% $ 77,202 100.00% $ 223,903 100.00% $ 254,276 100.00% 

In the third quarter of fiscal 2010, North America revenue was $32.6 million, an increase of $5.6 million, or 21% from the third quarter of fiscal
2009. Product revenue increased $6.2 million or 35% and service revenue decreased $0.6 million or 7% compared to a year ago quarter. The
increase in the North America revenue compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2009 was primarily due to an improving economy in the U.S.,
stronger sales in the U.S. due to higher than average deal size, increased revenue in Mexico and increased sales volume of our stackable
switches.
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In the first nine months of fiscal 2010, North America revenue was $86.9 million which represented a decrease of $9.1 million or 10% from the
first nine months of fiscal 2009. Product revenue decreased $8.8 million or 13% and service revenue decreased $0.3 million or 1% from the first
nine months of fiscal 2009. The decrease in the North America revenue compared to the first nine months of fiscal 2009 was primarily due to
supply chain constraints in the first quarter of fiscal 2010.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2010, EMEA revenue was $31.1 million, a decrease of $7.4 million, or 19%, from the third quarter of fiscal 2009.
Product revenue decreased $7.5 million or 22% and service revenue increased $0.1 million or 3% compared to a year ago quarter. In the first
nine months of fiscal 2010, EMEA revenue was $97.0 million which represented a decrease of $25.3 million or 21% from the first nine months
of fiscal 2009. Product revenue decreased $25.9 million or 24% and service revenue increased $0.7 million or 5% from the first nine months of
fiscal 2009. The decrease in EMEA revenue compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2009 and the first nine months of fiscal 2009 was primarily
due to a weaker European economy and lower sales of our metro chassis product family to service provider customers primarily in Eastern
Europe.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2010, APAC revenue was $14.6 million, an increase of $2.8 million or 23% from the third quarter of fiscal 2009.
Product revenue increased $2.5 million or 24% and service revenue increased $0.3 million or 22% compared to a year ago quarter. In the first
nine months of fiscal 2010, APAC revenue was $40.0 million which represented an increase of $4.0 million or 11% from the first nine months
of fiscal 2009. Product revenue increased $4.3 million or 14% and service revenue decreased $0.3 million or 7%. The increase in APAC revenue
compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2009 and the first nine months of fiscal 2009 was primarily due to increased sales in Japan and China.

The level of sales to any one customer may vary from period to period; however, we expect that significant customer concentration will continue
for the foreseeable future. Tech Data accounted for 12.3% of our revenue in the third quarter of fiscal 2010. Tech Data and Westcon accounted
for 11.0% and 10.3%, respectively, of our revenue in the third quarter of fiscal 2009.

Tech Data accounted for 12.0% of our revenue in the first nine months of fiscal 2010. Tech Data and Ericsson AB accounted for 10.3% and
10.0% of our revenue in the first nine months of fiscal 2009.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit

The following table presents the gross profit on product and service revenue and the gross profit percentage of product and service revenue for
the three and nine months ended March 28, 2010 and March 29, 2009, respectively (dollars in thousands):

Three months ended
March 28, 2010

Three months ended
March 29, 2009

Nine months ended
March 28, 2010

Nine months ended
March 29, 2009

$

Gross
Margin

% $

Gross
Margin

% $

Gross
Margin

% $

Gross
Margin

%
Gross profit:
Product $ 36,508 57.77% $ 35,875 57.85% $ 100,819 56.50% $ 121,260 58.03% 
Service 8,831 58.87% 8,543 56.26% 27,061 59.50% 23,281 51.36% 

Total gross profit $ 45,339 57.98% $ 44,418 57.53% $ 127,880 57.11% $ 144,541 56.84% 

Gross profit was $45.3 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2010, an increase of $0.9 million or 2% as compared to $44.4 million in the third
quarter of fiscal 2009.

Cost of product revenue includes costs of raw materials, amounts paid to third-party contract manufacturers, costs related to warranty
obligations, charges for excess and obsolete inventory, royalties under technology license agreements, and internal costs associated with
manufacturing overhead, including management, manufacturing engineering, quality assurance, development of test plans, and document
control. We outsource substantially all of our manufacturing and supply chain management operations, and we conduct quality assurance,
manufacturing engineering, document control and distribution at our facility in Santa Clara, California. Accordingly, a significant portion of our
cost of product revenue consists of payments to our primary contract manufacturers, Flextronics International, Ltd. located in Guadalajara,
Mexico, Alpha Networks, located in Hsinchu, Taiwan and Benchmark Electronics, Inc, located in Huntsville, Alabama, U.S.A.
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Product gross profit in the third quarter of fiscal 2010 was $36.5 million, representing an increase of $0.6 million or 2% from the third quarter of
fiscal 2009. As a percentage of revenue, product gross margin was even. The increase in product gross profit was primarily driven by $1.1
million recovery of warranty expense incurred in the prior period from our outside design manufacturer and $0.6 million increase in sales
volume, offset by $1.1 million decrease due to mix and competition.
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Product gross profit for the first nine months of fiscal 2010 was $100.8 million, a decrease of $20.5 million or 17% from $121.3 million in the
first nine months of fiscal 2009. As a percentage of revenue, product gross margin decreased one and a half percentage points. The decrease in
product gross profit was primarily driven by $17.7 million decrease in sales volume driven by supply chain constraints in the first quarter of
fiscal 2010 and $3.9 million decrease due to mix and competition, offset by $1.1 million recovery of warranty expense incurred in the prior
period from our outside design manufacturer.

Our cost of service revenue consists primarily of labor, overhead, repair and freight costs and the cost of spares used in providing support under
customer service contracts. Service gross profit was $8.8 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2010, an increase of $0.3 million or 3% from $8.5
million in the third quarter of fiscal 2009. The increase in service gross profit in the third quarter of fiscal 2010 was primarily due to cost savings
in professional services.

Service gross profit was $27.1 million for the first nine months of fiscal 2010, an increase of $3.8 million or 16% from $23.3 million in the first
nine months of fiscal 2009. The increase in service gross profit was primarily due to lower return material authorization costs of $2.3 million and
cost savings in professional services of $1.6 million.

Sales and Marketing Expenses

Sales and marketing expenses consist of salaries, commissions and related expenses for personnel engaged in marketing and sales functions, as
well as trade shows and promotional expenses. Sales and marketing expenses increased to $24.6 million for the third quarter of fiscal 2010 from
$24.3 million for the third quarter of fiscal 2009, an increase of $0.3 million, or 1%. This increase was primarily driven by $1.0 million of higher
commission expense due to higher sales volume and commission accelerators and higher travel expense of $0.3 million, offset by lower salary
and benefits of $0.8 million due to lower headcount.

Sales and marketing expenses decreased to $70.8 million for the first nine months of fiscal 2010 from $75.9 million for the first nine months of
fiscal 2009, a decrease of $5.1 million or 7%. The decrease was primarily due to lower salary and benefits of $1.9 million due to lower
headcount, $1.0 million of lower commission expense due to lower sales volume, $0.9 million of favorable foreign exchange impact, lower
occupancy cost of $0.5 million due to consolidation of sales offices worldwide and lower general sales and marketing expense of $0.8 million.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses consist principally of salaries and related personnel expenses, consultant fees and prototype expenses
related to the design, development and testing of our products. Research and development expenses decreased to $11.3 million for the third
quarter of fiscal 2010 from $13.9 million for the third quarter of fiscal 2009, a decrease of $2.6 million or 19%. The decrease was due to lower
salary and benefits of $2.1 million due to lower headcount and lower project spending and equipment costs of $0.3 million.

Research and development expenses decreased to $37.3 million for the first nine months of fiscal 2010 from $44.5 million for the first nine
months of fiscal 2009, a decrease of $7.2 million or 16%. The decrease was primarily due to lower salary and benefits of $4.7 million due to
lower headcount and lower spending of $2.6 million on engineering projects.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries and related expenses for executive, finance and administrative personnel, legal
fees, professional fees and other general corporate expenses. General and administrative expenses decreased to $6.1 million for the third quarter
of fiscal 2010 from $7.0 million for the third quarter of fiscal 2009, a decrease of $0.9 million, or 12%. This decrease was primarily due to lower
salary and benefits of $0.7 million due to lower headcount and $0.7 million of lower professional fees in litigation and financial consulting,
offset by $0.4 million increase in share based compensation and general expenses.

General and administrative expenses decreased to $19.9 million for the first nine months of fiscal 2010 from $22.8 million for the first nine
months of fiscal 2009, a decrease of $2.9 million or 13%. The decrease was primarily due to $2.8 million of lower professional fees in litigation
and financial consulting and lower salary and benefits of $0.9 million due to lower headcount, offset by $0.6 million increase in share based
compensation.

Restructuring, Net
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During the third quarter of fiscal 2010, we paid termination benefits related to the reduction in our workforce which occurred in the second
quarter of fiscal 2010. Actual payments were higher than the estimated amount therefore we accrued an additional $0.2 million in the third
quarter of fiscal 2010. In addition, we had an increase in operating expenses related to one of our restructured facilities and recognized an
additional $0.2 million of expense in the third quarter of fiscal 2010.
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Adjustments to Share Based Compensation Expense During the Nine Months Ended March 28, 2010

We were notified by our third party software provider that it had made certain changes to how its software program calculates stock-based
compensation expense. Specifically, the prior version of this software that we had been using calculated stock-based compensation expense by
incorrectly applying a weighted average forfeiture rate to the vested portion of stock option awards until the grant�s final vest date, rather than
calculating stock-based compensation expense based upon the actual vested portion of the grant date fair value, resulting in an understatement of
stock-based compensation expense in certain periods prior to the grant�s final vest date. Consequently, we identified errors in the calculation of
stock-based compensation expense for fiscal years ended June 29, 2008, July 1, 2007 and July 2, 2006. The errors identified relate only to the
timing of stock-based compensation expense recognition.

We determined that the cumulative error from the understatement of stock-based compensation expense related to the periods discussed above
totaled $0.9 million through June 29, 2008. The impact of the errors on the fiscal years ended June 29, 2008, July 1, 2007 and July 2, 2006, is to
decrease net income by $0.3 million for each year.

Management has determined that the impact of this error is not material to the previously issued annual and interim financial statements.
Accordingly, the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended March 28, 2010 include the cumulative
adjustment to increase stock-based compensation expense by $0.9 million (or $0.01 per share) to correct these errors. We do not believe the
correction of these errors is material to the condensed consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended March 28, 2010 and do not
believe that it will be material to the annual consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 27, 2010.

Interest Income

Interest income was $0.4 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2010 as compared to $0.7 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2009, a decrease of
$0.3 million. The decrease was due to lower interest rates earned on investments. Average interest yield in the third quarter of fiscal 2010 was
1.7% as compared to 2.6% in third quarter of fiscal 2009.

Interest Expense

Interest expense in the third quarter of fiscal 2010 and third quarter of fiscal 2009 was immaterial and was primarily related to interest
amortization of technology agreements.

Other Income / (Expense), Net

Other income (expense) net, was income of $0.2 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2010 as compared to income of $0.4 million in the third
fiscal quarter of 2009, a decrease in income of $0.2 million. The decrease in income in other income (expense), net was primarily due to foreign
exchange related gains and losses. Foreign exchange related gains and losses primarily include, (1) re-measurement of the foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities and (2) realized and un-realized gains and losses on foreign exchange forward contracts related to the foreign
currency denominated assets and liabilities. Foreign exchange gain was $0.1 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2010 as compared to a gain of
$0.4 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2009.

Other income (expense), net for the nine months ended March 28, 2010 also includes an unrealized loss of $4.0 million on our Auction Rate
Securities offset by $4.0 million gain in fair value of the Put Option related to our acceptance of the UBS Rights offer to repurchase our ARS in
the third quarter of fiscal 2009.

Provision for Income Taxes

We recorded an income tax benefit of $0.2 million and an income tax expense of $0.4 million for the third quarter of fiscal 2010 and the third
quarter of fiscal 2009, respectively. The reduction in tax expense is related to a $0.8 million release of a foreign tax reserve. The income tax
provisions for the three months ended March 28, 2010 and March 29, 2009 consisted primarily of taxes on foreign income, state income tax and
the U.S. Federal alternative minimum tax. The income tax provisions for both quarters were calculated based on the results of operations for the
three month periods ended March 28, 2010 and March 29, 2009, and may not reflect the annual effective rate. Since we have net operating loss
carry forwards to offset U.S. taxable income, we are not using an annual effective tax rate to apply to the taxable income for the quarter.

We have provided a full valuation allowance for our U.S. net deferred tax assets. Evidence, such as recent quarterly losses and the challenge of
forecasting financials in this economic environment, was given more weight than recent cumulative profits. Accordingly, we believe that there is
sufficient negative evidence to require a full valuation allowance against our U.S federal and state net deferred tax assets. This valuation
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realization of our U.S. deferred tax assets.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our significant accounting policies are more fully described in Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 28, 2009. The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates, assumptions and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts
of revenue and expenses during the period reported. By their nature, these estimates, assumptions and judgments are subject to an inherent
degree of uncertainty. We base our estimates, assumptions and judgments on historical experience, market trends and other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Estimates, assumptions and judgments are reviewed on an ongoing basis and the effects of
revisions are reflected in the consolidated financial statements in the period they are determined to be necessary. Actual results may differ from
these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. Our critical accounting policies have been discussed with the Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors. We believe there have been no material changes to our critical accounting policies and estimates compared to those
discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 28, 2009.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

The following standards should be read in conjunction with the standards documented in New Accounting Pronouncements under Item 7A in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 28, 2009.

In February 2010, the FASB issued a new accounting standards update that eliminated the requirement for an entity that is an SEC filer to
disclose the date through which subsequent events have been evaluated in its financial statement disclosures. This new accounting standards
update is effective upon release. The adoption of the new accounting standards update did not have a material impact on our consolidated results
of operations, financial condition or financial disclosures.

In January 2010, the FASB issued a new accounting standards update for fair value measurements and disclosures. A reporting entity should
disclose separately the amounts of significant transfers in and out of Level 1 and Level 2 and describe the reasons for the transfers. A reporting
entity should separately disclose information about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements for Level 3 reconciliation disclosures. The new
disclosures and clarifications of existing disclosures are effective for financial statements issued interim or annual financial periods ending after
December 15, 2009, with the exception for the reconciliation disclosures for Level 3, which are effective for financial statements issued interim
or annual financial periods ending after December 15, 2010. The adoption of the new accounting standards update did not have a material impact
on our consolidated results of operations, financial condition or financial disclosures.

In October 2009, the FASB issued a new accounting standard which excludes from the scope of software revenue guidance the revenue
arrangements that include tangible products containing software components and non-software components that function together to deliver the
tangible product�s essential functionality. At the same time, the FASB also issued a new accounting standard which updates existing guidance
pertaining to the separation and allocation of consideration in a multiple element arrangement. This new guidance will be applicable to our
multiple element arrangements that include such tangible products. The new standards are effective prospectively for revenue arrangements
entered into or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010. We are currently evaluating the impact that the adoption
of the new accounting standards may have on our consolidated results of operations and financial condition.

In June 2009, the FASB issued a new accounting standard which approved the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) as the single
source of authoritative accounting principles. The codification does not change GAAP, but instead reorganizes the existing authoritative
standards into a comprehensive, topically organized online database to simplify user access to all authoritative U.S. GAAP. Companies may
elect to disclose the new ASC codes, disclose both new ASC codes and old FASB accounting literature references, or completely remove all
references to accounting literature. We chose to remove all references to accounting literature and previous references to applicable literature in
our disclosures are removed in our Form 10Q effective in the first quarter of fiscal 2010. As the codification did not change GAAP, the adoption
of ASC did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following summarizes information regarding our cash, investments, and working capital (in thousands):

As of
March 28, 2010 June 28, 2009

Cash and cash equivalents $ 40,362 $ 46,195
Short-term Investments 63,197 8,976
Marketable Securities 24,358 72,231

Cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments and marketable securities $ 127,917 $ 127,403

Working capital $ 70,463 $ 23,414
Cash and cash equivalents decreased by $5.8 million primarily due to cash used in investing activities. Refer to further discussions below under
Key Components of Cash Flows and Liquidity.

Short-term investments increased by $54.2 million primarily due to the transfer of securities maturing within one year from marketable securities
and the reclassification of $40.7 million of ARS balance from marketable securities in the first quarter of fiscal 2010. Refer to further
discussions below under Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Marketable securities decreased by $47.9 million primarily due to the reclassification of $40.7 million of ARS balance to short-term investments
and the transfer of securities maturing within one year to short-term investments.

The increase in working capital of $47.0 million was primarily due to the reclassification of ARS from marketable securities to short-term
investments.

Key Components of Cash Flows and Liquidity

A summary of the sources and uses of cash and cash equivalents is as follows (in thousands):

Nine months ended
March 28,

2010
March 29,

2009
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 3,056 $ (3,999) 
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities $ (10,012) $ 71,723
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities $ 1,123 $ (99,499) 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents $ (5,833) $ (31,775) 
Cash provided by operating activities was $3.1 million. Net loss was $3.2 million and included significant non-cash charges including
depreciation of $4.3 million, $4.6 million in share-based compensation expense, $1.4 million in the provision for excess and obsolete inventory
and restructuring expense of $4.0 million. Accounts receivable, net, decreased to $36.6 million at March 28, 2010 from $37.6 million at June 28,
2009. Days sales outstanding in receivables was 43 days at March 28, 2010 and 42 days at June 28, 2009 due to increased collections. Accounts
payable increased to $18.9 million primarily due to increased inventory purchases at quarter end. Net inventory levels increased to $23.6 million
at March 28, 2010 from $12.4 million at June 28, 2009. Inventory balance of $12.4 million at June 28, 2009 was lower than the normal
inventory balance between $16.0 million to $18.0 million due to decreased inventory forecast demand from decreased revenue in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2009. We increased our inventory balance to $23.6 million as of March 28, 2010 in anticipation of increased sales demand for
the upcoming fourth quarter, which is historically our strongest quarter of the fiscal year. Deferred revenue, net, which consists of product and
service revenue deferrals, increased to $37.6 million at March 28, 2010 from $37.5 million at June 28, 2009. The increase was primarily due to
increased maintenance renewal activities in the third quarter of fiscal 2010. Deferred revenue, net of cost of sales to distributors, increased $4.7
million from $9.8 million at June 28, 2009 to $14.5 million at March 28, 2010. Deferred revenue, net of cost of sales to distributors, balance of
$9.8 million at June 28, 2009 was lower than the normal balance between $14.0 million to $16.0 million. We increased the deferred revenue, net
of cost of sales to distributors, balance to $14.5 million at March 28, 2010 to return to normal distributor stocking levels.
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Cash flow used in investing activities was $10.0 million. Capital expenditures were $3.6 million. We had a net purchase of investments of $6.4
million in the first nine months of fiscal 2010 as we transferred cash and cash equivalents into longer term securities to take advantage of higher
interest yield.

Cash provided by financing activities was $1.1 million from the issuance of common stock.

We had a revolving line of credit for $10.0 million with a major lending institution which expired on January 22, 2010. We at our own discretion
made a decision to not renew this line of credit.

As of March 28, 2010, we had letters of credit totaling $0.2 million secured by cash. These letters of credit are primarily issued in lieu of making
cash deposits with third parties.

In October 2008, we entered into a secured line of credit with UBS, collateralized by our ARS held by UBS. The maximum amount of credit
available under this line of credit is $28.8 million. On November 7, 2008 we accepted the UBS Rights offer and hence the terms of the �no net
cost� loan program apply to this line of credit. Under this program, the interest rate on this secured credit facility will be equivalent to the interest
rate earned by us on the ARS at UBS, resulting in no net interest cost to us. There are currently no outstanding borrowings under this line of
credit.

Employee Stock Option Exchange Program

On December 23, 2009, our stockholders approved a voluntary program (�Exchange Program�) that permitted eligible employees to exchange
certain outstanding stock options that were �underwater� for a lesser number of shares of restricted stock units to be granted under the Extreme
Networks, Inc. 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (the �2005 Plan�) and to exchange certain other stock options that are more substantially underwater for
a cash payment. The Exchange Program was open to all of our United States employees, except for members of our Board of Directors and our
executive officers. The Exchange Program commenced on February 4, 2010 and ended March 4, 2010. On March 5, 2010, we cancelled a total
of 3,058,761 tendered stock options, issued a total of 569,189 replacement restricted stock units under the 2005 Plan, and incurred a cash outlay
of $8,769 which was paid out at the end of March 2010.

Contractual Obligations

The following summarizes our contractual obligations at March 28, 2010, and the effect such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity
and cash flow in future periods (in thousands):

Total

Less
Than 1
Year

1 � 3
Years

3 � 5
Years

More Than
Five Years

Contractual Obligations:
Non-cancelable inventory purchase commitments $ 48,860 $ 48,860 $ �  $ �  $ �  
Non-cancelable operating lease obligations 11,746 6,941 3,898 907 �  
Other non-cancelable purchase commitments 2,734 1,984 750 �  �  

Total contractual cash obligations $ 63,340 $ 57,785 $ 4,648 $ 907 $ �  

Non-cancelable inventory purchase commitments represent the purchase of long lead-time component inventory that our contract manufacturers
procure in accordance with our forecast. Inventory purchase commitments were $48.9 million as of March 28, 2010, an increase of $29.0 million
from $19.9 million as of June 28, 2009. The increase was primarily due to increased purchases for long lead time inventory at our outside design
manufacturer and increased demand forecast for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010.

We did not have material commitments for capital expenditures as of March 28, 2010. Other non-cancelable purchase commitments represent
OEM and technology agreements.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
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We did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as of March 28, 2010.

Capital Resources and Financial Condition

We believe that our current cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, marketable securities and cash available from credit facilities and
future operations will enable us to meet our working capital requirements for at least the next 12 months.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Interest Rate Sensitivity

The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve principal while at the same time maximizing the income we receive from our
investments without significantly increasing risk. Some of the securities that we have invested in may be subject to market risk. This means that
a change in prevailing interest rates may cause the principal amount of the investment to fluctuate. For example, if we hold a security that was
issued with a fixed interest rate at the then-prevailing rate and the prevailing interest rate later rises, the principal amount of our investment will
probably decline. To minimize this risk, we maintain our portfolio of cash equivalents and short-term investments in a variety of securities,
including commercial paper, other non-government debt securities and money market funds.

We hold a variety of interest bearing ARS that represent investments in pools of student loans. These ARS investments are intended to provide
liquidity via an auction process that resets the applicable interest rate at predetermined calendar intervals, allowing investors to either roll over
their holdings or gain immediate liquidity by selling such interests at par. The recent uncertainties in the credit markets have affected all of our
holdings in ARS investments and auctions for our investments in these securities have failed to settle on their respective settlement dates. On
November 7, 2008, we accepted the UBS Rights offer from UBS, providing us with rights related to our ARS. The Rights permit us to require
UBS to purchase our ARS at par value, which is defined as the price equal to the liquidation preference of the ARS plus accrued but unpaid
dividends or interest, at any time during the period of June 30, 2010 through July 2, 2012. Conversely, UBS has the right, in its discretion, to
purchase or sell our ARS at any time until July 2, 2012, so long as we receive payment at par value upon any sale or disposition. We expect to
sell our ARS under the Rights in the period beginning in 2010. However, if the Rights are not exercised before July 2, 2012 they will expire and
UBS will have no further rights or obligation to buy our ARS. So long as we hold our ARS, they will continue to accrue interest as determined
by the auction process or the terms of the ARS if the auction process fails. During the first quarter of fiscal 2010, we reclassified our entire
balance of ARS from marketable securities to short-term securities in our consolidated balance sheet. The reclassification is a result of the
securities underlying the Put Option being due within less than one year from the balance sheet date.

The valuation of our investment portfolio is subject to uncertainties that are difficult to predict. Factors that may impact its valuation include
changes to credit ratings of the securities, discount rates and ongoing strength and quality of market credit and liquidity.

If the current market conditions deteriorate further, or the anticipated recovery in market values does not occur, we may be required to record
impairment charges in future quarters.

The following table presents the amounts of our cash equivalents, short-term investments and marketable securities that are subject to market
risk by range of expected maturity and weighted-average interest rates as of March 28, 2010. This table does not include money market funds
because those funds are generally not subject to market risk. Included within short-terms investments within this table is our ARS portfolio held
at UBS.

Maturing in
Three

months
or

less

Three
months to
one year

Greater
than one

year Total
Fair

Value
Included in short-term investments $ �  $ 59,181 $ �  $ 59,181 $ 59,181
Weighted average interest rate 2.13% 
Included in marketable securities $ 24,358 $ 24,358 $ 24,358
Weighted average interest rate 1.58% 
Exchange Rate Sensitivity

Currently, substantially all of our sales and the majority of our expenses are denominated in United States dollars and, as a result, we have
experienced no significant foreign exchange gains and losses to date. While we conduct some sales transactions and incur certain operating
expenses in foreign currencies and expect to continue to do so, we do not anticipate that foreign exchange gains or losses will be significant, in
part because of our foreign exchange risk management process discussed below.
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Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts

We record all derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognized in earnings. We enter into
foreign exchange forward contracts to mitigate the effect of gains and losses generated by the foreign currency forecasted transactions related to
certain operating expenses and remeasurement of certain assets and liabilities denominated in Japanese Yen, the Euro, the Swedish Krona, the
Indian Rupee and the British Pound. These derivatives do not qualify as hedges. At March 28, 2010, these forward foreign currency contracts
had a notional principal amount of $21.8 million and fair value was $0.3 million. These contracts have maturities of less than 60 days. Changes
in the fair value of these foreign exchange forward contracts are offset largely by remeasurement of the underlying assets and liabilities.

We do not enter into foreign exchange forward contracts for speculative or trading purposes. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses from
operations were a loss of $0.1 million in both third quarters of fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses from
operations were a loss of $0.3 million in the first nine months of fiscal 2010 and gain of $0.6 million in the first nine months of fiscal 2009.
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures are controls and procedures designed to reasonably assure that information required to be disclosed in our
reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended, such as this Report, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC�s rules and forms and to reasonably assure that such information is accumulated and communicated
to our management, including the Acting President and Chief Executive Officer, and Chief Financial Officer (�Acting CEO and CFO�), as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Acting CEO and CFO, we evaluated the effectiveness of the
design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this Report. Based on this evaluation, our
Acting CEO and CFO concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this Report.

Management�s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over our financial reporting. There are inherent
limitations in the effectiveness of any system of internal control, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of
controls. Accordingly, even effective internal controls can provide only reasonable assurances with respect to financial statement preparation.
Further because of changes in conditions, the effectiveness of internal control may vary over time.

We assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of the end of the period covered by this Report. In making this
assessment, we used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework.

Based on our assessment using those criteria, we concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this Report, our internal control over
financial reporting is effective.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended March 28, 2010 that have materially affected, or
are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including the Acting CEO and CFO, does not expect that our disclosure controls or our internal control over financial
reporting will prevent or detect all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable,
not absolute, assurance that the control system�s objectives will be met. Our controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable
assurance that our control system�s objective will be met and our Acting CEO and CFO have concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures are effective at the reasonable assurance level. The design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints,
and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Further, because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no
evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that misstatements due to error or fraud will not occur or that all control issues and
instances of fraud, if any, within Extreme Networks have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in
decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. Controls can also be circumvented by the
individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the controls. The design of any system of
controls is based in part on certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events. Projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of
controls in future periods are subject to risks. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or deterioration in
the degree of compliance with policies or procedures. Notwithstanding these limitations, our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to
provide reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives. Our Acting CEO and CFO have concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures are, in fact, effective at the �reasonable assurance� level.
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PART II. Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings
For information regarding litigation matters that we deem significant, refer to Part I, Item 3, Legal Proceedings of our Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended June 28, 2009 and Note 3 to our Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, included in Part I, Item 1
of this Report which are incorporated herein by reference.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
In addition to the other information set forth in this Report, you should carefully consider the factors discussed in Part I, Item 1A. �Risk Factors� in
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 28, 2009 and Part II, Item 1A, �Risk Factors� in our Quarterly Reports on Form
10-Q for the quarters ended September 27, 2009 and December 27, 2009, which to our knowledge have not materially changed. Those risks,
which could materially affect our business, financial condition or future results, are not the only risks we face. Additional risks and uncertainties
not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial also may adversely affect our business, financial condition and/or
operating results.

Item 6. Exhibits
(a) Exhibits:

31.1 Section 302 Certification of Acting Chief Executive Officer, and Chief Financial Officer

32.1 Section 906 Certification of Acting Chief Executive Officer, and Chief Financial Officer
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

EXTREME NETWORKS, INC.

(Registrant)

/s/    BOB L. COREY

BOB L. COREY
Acting President and Chief Executive Officer

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
April 30, 2010
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